
 

 

Lancashire County Council 
 
Education and Children's Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Wednesday, 14th October, 2020 at 10.30 am in Committee Room 'C' - The Duke 
of Lancaster Room, County Hall, Preston  
 
Agenda 
 
Part I (Open to Press and Public) 
 
No. Item 

 
 

1. Apologies   
 

 

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary 
Interests   

 

 Members are asked to consider any Pecuniary and 
Non-Pecuniary Interests they may have to disclose to 
the meeting in relation to matters under consideration 
on the Agenda. 
 

 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 2 September 2020   
 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

4. Preparing for an increase in demand in Children's 
Social Care   

 

(Pages 7 - 8) 

5. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/2021   
 

(Pages 9 - 14) 

6. Urgent Business    

 An item of urgent business may only be considered 
under this heading where, by reason of special 
circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chair 
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.  
Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be 
given advance warning of any Member’s intention to 
raise a matter under this heading. 
 

 

7. Date of Next Meeting    

 The next meeting of the Education and Children's 
Services Scrutiny Committee will be held on Tuesday 
10 November 2020 at 10.30am. 

 

 
 L Sales 

Director of Corporate Services 
County Hall 
Preston 

 



 



 

 

Lancashire County Council 
 
Education and Children's Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 2nd September, 2020 at 10.30 
am in Skype Virtual Meeting - Skype 
 
 
Present: 

County Councillor Andrea Kay (Chair) 
 

County Councillors 
 

M Dad 
Mrs S Charles 
A Cheetham 
S Clarke 
J Eaton 
N Hennessy 
S Malik 
 

J Mein 
E Nash 
J Purcell 
M Salter 
D T Smith 
P Steen 
B Yates 
 

Co-opted members 
 

Dr Sam Johnson, Representing CE Schools 
Oliver Moores, Representing Youth Council 
 

County Councillor Barrie Yates replaced County Councillor Andrew Gardiner for 
this meeting. 
 
1.   Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Mrs Janet Hamid (Co-Optee Voting) Representing 
Parent Governors (Secondary) and Simon Smith (Co-Optee Voting) 
Representing RC Schools. 
 
2.   Constitution: Chair and Deputy Chair; Membership; Terms of 

Reference 
 

The report presented set out the constitution, membership, chair and deputy chair 
and terms of reference of the new education and Children's Services Scrutiny 
Committee for the remainder of the municipal year 2020/21. 
 
Resolved: That the following be noted: 
 

1. The appointment of County Councillors Andrea Kay and Munsif Dad as 
Chair and Deputy Chair of the committee for the remainder of the 2020/21 
municipal year. 

2. The membership of the committee following the County Council's   Annual 
Meeting on 16 July 2020 

3. The new Terms of Reference of the committee. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

3.   Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 
 

None were disclosed. 
 
4.   Minutes of the meeting held on 7 July 2020 

 
Resolved: The minutes from the meeting held on 7 July 2020 were confirmed as 
an accurate record. 
 
5.   The Role of the Local Authority with Schools 

 
The Chair welcomed Sarah Callaghan, Director of Education and Skills 
Lancashire County Council, to the meeting.  
 
A presentation was provided to the committee and aimed to do three things: 
 

 Set out what Local Authorities had the legal powers to do to support 
schools and settings. 

 Present an overview of how these duties were met in Lancashire where a 
number of schools were no longer maintained by the Local Authority. 

 Set out how schools and settings would be supported to open fully this 
September within the scope of the local framework the Local Authority 
operated in. 

 
Members were informed that the Academy Act 2010 gave powers to all schools 
to choose whether to become a single sponsored academy or part of a multi-
academy trust which was a group of academies with a shared executive 
governing body. This had seen a shift towards a more autonomous school 
system and a move towards sector led school improvement. 
 
The Local Authority still retained some statutory duties that it had to fulfil and 
some formal powers for intervening in some underperforming maintained 
schools. As the 'champion of the learner' the Local Authority continued to play a 
unique role in understanding and shaping arrangements to meet the holistic 
needs of its citizens.  
 
In all schools regardless of status, governing bodies were responsible for: 
 

 The appointment of the head teacher (in maintained schools the Local 
Authority must advise but not make the decision). 

 Performance management of the head teacher. 

 Financial management. 

 Accountability for use of the pupil premium to support eligible pupils. 
 
The committee was informed that throughout the Covid-19 crisis, 500 of 
Lancashire's schools had remained open. Across the county attendance numbers 
varied but the attendance figures throughout this period were comparatively 
higher than other neighbouring authorities especially regarding vulnerable 
children. 
 

Page 2



 

The Local Authority had provided detailed advice to support schools in applying 
guidance from central government regarding lockdown and the wider opening of 
schools. It had also supported schools in providing free school meals and 
emergency PPE. 
 
In terms of the opening of schools in September, the Local Authority had worked 
with Public Health colleagues and Social Care colleagues. Guidance had been 
developed around access to testing in localities and also developed transport 
arrangements guidance which had been shared with all schools. 
 
Comments and questions raised by the committee were as follows: 
 

 Regarding children using public transport for travelling to school, parents 
had raised concerns over this and that some of the guidance had been 
confusing. In response it was confirmed that two areas of funding had 
come through to support transport. One to support public networks of 
transport and one to support the county council's commissioned transport. 
Schools had direct contact with officers in the transport service for any 
concerns with the guidance. Schools must have a register of all pupils 
using public transport and commissioned transport and submit this to the 
county council. 

 In terms of face masks the advice was for children to wear them on public 
transport. However on the county council's commissioned transport, it was 
not mandatory at the present time to wear face masks. 

 Members were informed that the relationship between the county council 
and academies was as positive as it was with maintained schools.  

 Through the LASSH (Lancashire Association of Secondary School 
Headteachers), the local authority worked closely with secondary schools. 
It was also acknowledged that the secondary schools were positive about 
sharing their data and working together. 

 It was noted that outcomes for SEND children tended to be poorer in areas 
of deprivation and Advisors have had to be used more effectively in those 
areas to challenge the outcomes of vulnerable children. 

 It was stated that governors had a critical role to play in schools especially 
in support of headteachers. Leadership was the key factor in terms of 
school improvement and the local authority have regular and consistent 
dialogue with governors. Although it was acknowledged that dialogue 
could be improved.  
 

Resolved: That the report be noted. 
 
6.   Joint Area SEND Revisit in Lancashire 

 
The Chair welcomed Sarah Callaghan, Director of Education and Skills 
Lancashire County Council, and, Hilary Fordham, Chief Operating Officer 
Morecambe Bay CCG. 
 
The report presented explained that between 9 March and 12 March 2020, 
Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission (CQC) revisited the area of Lancashire 
to decide whether sufficient progress had been made in addressing each of 

Page 3



 

significant areas for improvement detailed in the written statement of action 
issued on 8 January 2018. The report provided members with details and the 
outcome of the revisit. 
 
239 pieces of evidence were provided for inspectors and 89 people were 
interviewed. Inspectors spoke with council colleagues and partners, a range of 
education representatives, parents, carers and children and young people. 
 
Ofsted and the CQC judged that of the 12 significant areas of concern identified 
in the 2017 inspection Lancashire had made sufficient progress in addressing 7 
areas and had not made sufficient progress in addressing 5 areas. 
 
It was reported that an Accelerated Progress Plan (APP) was to be submitted to 
the DfE and the NHS by 28 September 2020. The plan had to set out what the 
Local Authority was going to do to address the 5 areas where sufficient progress 
had not yet been made. The Health and Wellbeing Board would oversee the 
Accelerated Progress Plan. Formal monitoring would take place at 6 months and 
12 months from 28 September 2020. For all other areas of improvement a 
broader improvement plan would be developed, agreed and monitored by the 
SEND Partnership Board. 
 
Comments and questions raised by the committee were as follows: 
 

 Concerns were raised over the transition in health care from Children's 
Services to Adult Services. A Provider Forum had been set up to address 
this. Services for children were provided through paediatric services. 
Services for adults were provided from many service areas. The Local 
Authority had to engage with Adult Services to ensure they understood 
their responsibilities in supporting the transition of young people from a 
single service into the adult services areas. 

 Regarding the areas where sufficient progress had not been made, the 
committee enquired if there were timelines in place. It was confirmed that 
the APP included the timescales when each of the areas would be fulfilled. 

 The inspectors were complimentary in their report of the support measures 
in place for people on the waiting lists. However, parents and carers must 
be encouraged to access these support services whilst they await a full 
diagnosis. 

 
Resolved: That: 
 

i. The information provided be noted. 
ii. Comments from the Education and Children's Services Scrutiny 

Committee be presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
iii. The Accelerated Progress Plan be circulated to the Education and 

Children's Services Scrutiny Committee. 
iv. The Education and Children's Services Scrutiny Committee be provided 

with a progress update in six months. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

7.   Schools Causing Concern Task Group - Response to 
Recommendations 
 

The Chair welcomed County Councillor Phillippa Williamson, Cabinet Member for 
Children, Young People and Schools, to the meeting. 
 
The report presented informed committee members that in March 2020, the 
Education Scrutiny Committee published a task and finish group report on 
'Schools Causing Concern'. 
 
In accordance with agreed protocols, the Cabinet Member for Children, Young 
People and Schools had been asked to provide a response to the 
recommendations included as part of the task and finish group's report. 
 
The Cabinet Member thanked the members of the task and finish group for all 
their effort and work in putting the report together. The Cabinet Member 
supported and commented on all of the recommendations of the task and finish 
group. 
 
Comments and questions raised by the committee were as follows: 
 

 Lancashire County Council was committed to supporting head teachers 
whatever the status of their school and use their wealth of experience and 
knowledge. Positive relationships had to be maintained. 

 There must be a proactive approach to supporting schools focusing on 
prevention of problems and performance improvement. 

 The Local Authority must increase its support for Lancashire's school 
governors. They were crucial to the success of their schools and the 
performance of their head teachers. Ongoing training for governors was 
essential. 

 Members enquired about the finances for schools during the Covid crisis. 
Funding for schools was very tight in some areas of the county. The 
county council was trying to obtain as much funding as it could to support 
additional expenditure schools might have. It was also lobbying Central 
Government to obtain as much funding as possible for its schools. Schools 
could claim back for Covid related expenditure. 

 
Resolved: That; 
 

i. The response be received. 
ii. A progress update on recommendations be provided to the committee in 

six months. 
 
8.   Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/2021 

 
The report presented provided information on the single combined work 
programme drafted for all of the Lancashire County Council scrutiny committees. 
 
The topics included were identified at a work planning workshop for members of 
the Internal Scrutiny Committee held on 29 May 2020 and from a previous 

Page 5



 

combined meeting of both Children's Services and Education Scrutiny 
Committees. 
 
Regarding the October meeting of the Education and Children's Services 
Committee and the item on Children's Social Care it was agreed to discuss Child 
Poverty with this item. 
 
In terms of the November meeting and preparations for a second wave of Covid 
and local lockdowns, it was felt that the committee should review earlier than 
November what was in place already for a second wave. 
 
A suggestion was put forward to have an update on Lancashire Break Time in six 
months.  
 
A briefing note would be circulated to the Education and Children's Services 
Committee on school finance issues. 
 
Resolved: That; 
 

i. The work plan presented be noted. 
ii. The additional topics be noted for potential inclusion in the work 

programme. 
 
9.   Urgent Business 

 
There were no items of Urgent Business. 
 
10.   Date of Next Meeting 

 
The next virtual meeting of the Education and Children's Services Scrutiny 
Committee would take place on Wednesday 14 October 2020 at 10.30am. 
 
 
 L Sales 

Director of Corporate Services 
  
County Hall 
Preston 

 

 
 

Page 6



 
 

Education and Children's Services Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting to be held on Wednesday, 14 October 2020 
 

Electoral Division affected: 
None; 

 
Preparing for an increase in demand in Children's Social Care 
 
Contact for further information: 
Gary Halsall, Tel: (01772) 536989, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Overview 
and Scrutiny), gary.halsall@lancashire.gov.uk 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
Presentation on the plans in place to manage the increase in children's social care 
referrals. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Education and Children's Services Scrutiny Committee is asked to note and 
comment on the presentation. 
 

 
Background and Advice  
 
Sharon Hubber, Director of Children's Social Care will attend the meeting and 
provide a presentation to update the committee on the plans in place to manage the 
increase in children's social care referrals. 
 
Consultations 
 
N/A 
 
Implications:  
 
This item has the following implications, as indicated: 
 
Risk management 
 
There are no risk management implications arising from this item. 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 
Paper Date Contact/Tel 
 
None 

 
 

 
 
 

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate - N/A 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 

Page 8



 
 

Education and Children's Services Scrutiny Committee  
Meeting to be held on 14 October 2020  
 

Electoral Division affected: 
(All Divisions); 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/21 
(Appendix 'A' refers) 
 
Contact for further information: 
Samantha Parker, 01772 538221, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Overview and 
Scrutiny), sam.parker@lancashire.gov.uk  
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
This report provides information on the single combined work programme drafted for 
all of the Lancashire County Council scrutiny committees. A copy of this work 
programme is set out at Appendix A. 
 
The topics included were identified at a work planning workshop for members of the 
Internal Scrutiny Committee held on 29 May 2020 and from a previous combined 
meeting of both the Children's Services and Education Scrutiny Committees. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Education and Children's Services Scrutiny Committee is asked to review and 
agree the work programme items for the committee (as at Appendix A). 

 

 
 
Background and Advice  
 
The Covid 19 pandemic has required members and officers to work differently and 
the wider context has also meant that priorities have changed or shifted in emphasis.  
 
The work programme for this year has been combined with the other scrutiny 
committees given that the primary focus of the scrutiny work programme as a whole 
is dedicated to the response to the Covid 19 pandemic. For the Education and 
Children's Services Scrutiny Committee, the emphasis is on the impact to services 
supporting children and young people and the lessons learnt as the county council 
moves forward. 
 
To enable the committee to have the time to review and scrutinise the key areas 
highlighted in the work programme, it is recommended where possible that one 
substantive item is tabled per meeting. However, it is important to note that the work 
programme needs to be flexible in order to accommodate any urgent items that may 
arise. In addition, the work programme will form a standing item on the committee 
meeting agenda for regular review and to ensure it is still fit for purpose. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

mailto:sam.parker@lancashire.gov.uk


 
 

 
To further enhance the work programme, members are asked to reflect on key 
discussion areas or questions they would like to consider for each of the topic areas. 
This will ensure that the senior officers have a clear focus in order to provide the 
relevant information. 
 
Further to this, members are asked to consider who they would like to invite to future 
meetings to help provide a more holistic picture for scrutiny to understand the 
challenges and produce meaningful but achievable recommendations. 
 
Members are asked to review and agree the work programme items for the 
committee (as at Appendix A). 
 
Consultations 
 
NA 
 
Implications:  
 
This item has the following implications, as indicated: 
 
Risk management 
 
This report has no significant risk implications. 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 
 
Paper Date Contact/Tel 
 
None 

 
 

 
 
 

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate 
 
NA 
 

 

Page 10



  Appendix A 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021 

Scrutiny Committee 

M
o

n
th

 

 Education and Children's 
Services 

External Health Internal 

June 
 

   Update from the ICS on NHS 
Cells for Lancashire and 
digital and engagement with 
local people.  

 Temporary changes to clinical 
services across the ICS during 
the COVID-19 pandemic 

 

 

July 
 

Response to the COVID 19 
pandemic in Lancashire - 
perceptions of the experiences 
of children and young people, 
and headlines from the 
operation of service during the 
COVID-19 emergency period. 

Strengthening flood risk 
management and preparedness 

 1. RIPA annual report 
2. The impact of Covid 19 on 
county council services 
Highways – challenges faced 
following pandemic and 
resuming 'normal' work 
programmes  
 

September 
 

 Education: 
- What powers do we have 
as a county council/what 
can we do to support 
schools and parents.  
- Position update on the 
wider reopening of schools 

 Schools Causing Concern 
Task Group report – 
response to 
recommendations  

 SEND Ofsted inspection 
report  

 Review of work programme  
 

  Adult social care – winter 
preparations (Supporting the 
social care sector including 
domiciliary care workers) 

 NHS 111 First 
 

Covid 19 – what comes next? 
Including building pan-
Lancashire working and 
Democratic involvement in 
resilience forums and 
maintaining democratic 
leadership during a crisis 
 

P
age 11



  Appendix A 

October 
 

Children's Social Care - 
protecting vulnerable/valuable 
children – plans in place to 
manage spikes in referrals.  
Child poverty increase and the 
impact on the demand on 
social care 
 

 Universal credit 

 Decarbonisation pathway – 
Lancashire, Electricity North 
West (tbc) 

 

  

M
o

n
th

 

November 
 

Education – digital poverty and 
lesson learned. 
Digital aspirational views – 
turning challenge into 
opportunity. 
 

  Suicide prevention in 
Lancashire 

 LCC Adult Social Care Winter 
Plan 

Speeding Traffic and the lack 
of enforcement 
 
Scrutiny of the Council's 
response to the Government's 
call for local councils to invest 
in street safety 
 

December 
 

Impact of the pandemic on 
children and young people's 
mental health – plans in place 
to support and an update on 
CAMHS  including managing 
increase in contacts, anxiety of 
YP on return to school and 
availability of more online 
support 
 

 Housing with Care and Support 
Strategy 2018-2025 
 

 

 January Early Years sector – impact on 
private providers supporting 
vulnerable children and 
families (including update on 
the EY Strategy and School 
Improvement Model) 
 

 Strengthening flood risk 
management and 
preparedness – update on 
implementing 
recommendations. 

 Canal & Rivers Trust (tbc) 

 Youth Employment and 
Skills – impact on youth as one 
of the hardest hit groups 
during the pandemic 
(consideration to be given to 
which scrutiny committee will 
be most relevant to consider 
this topic)  
 

P
age 12



  Appendix A 

 February Lancashire schools attainment 
report (standing item) 
Schools causing concern task 
group - update on 
recommendations 
 

  NHS 111 First – update 

 OHOC Task and Finish Group 
report 

 

 March **Family Safeguarding Model – 
update on implementation of 
model in Oct/Nov 2020 
 

   

 April **SEND: 
Lancashire Breaktime update 
SEND Accelerated Progress 
Plan update 
Progress update on Pupils in 
special schools with medical 
conditions task group 
recommendations 

Review of Community Safety 
Partnerships Governance 
arrangements 

-  

      

O
th

e
r 

T
o

p
ic

s
 

Topics from 
work 

programmes 
2019/20 not 
scheduled 

Participation strategy update 
Road safety 
Independent children's homes 
Getting to Good plan update 
NEET 
SEN equipment in schools 
School transport 
Maintained nurseries update 
Parking at schools 
Childhood immunisation 
programme 
0-19 Healthy Child programme 
 

Lancashire energy strategy 
Review of Community Safety 
Partnerships and governance 
arrangements (2021 tbc) 
Greater Lancashire plan 
LCC Carbon Plan/Internal 
Energy and Water Management 
Policy 
 
LEP – response to the 
pandemic – economic recovery 
plan incorporating 'green' 
principles 
Impact of pandemic on road 
safety and lessons learnt 
 

Urgent Mental Health Pathway 
Transforming Care (Calderstones) 
Social Prescribing 
Cessation of the Lancashire 
Wellbeing Service 
Tackling period poverty 
Delayed transfers of care 
Stroke Programme 
Vascular, head and neck 
Review of Primary Care Networks 
and Neighbourhoods 
Transforming hospital services 
and care for people in Southport, 
Formby & West Lancs 
Disabled Facilities Grants 
 

Local Government Funding 
and Income Generation Task 
Group 
Update on Reducing Single 
Use Plastics in Lancashire 

 

P
age 13



P
age 14


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 2 September 2020
	4 Preparing for an increase in demand in Children's Social Care
	5 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/2021
	Appendix A Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/21


